
ST. LOUIS DOWNTOWN PARKING STUDY RFP 
ADDENDUM 1 - QUESTIONS & ANSWERS 

 
 
Q1.  What GIS information will be available for the purposes of the study?  
 
A. Here is a link to the City’s Open Data website: https://www.stlouis-mo.gov/data/. 
Any other data that would be helpful to the selected consultant in completing this project will be provided 
upon request if it’s available and permissible to share. 

 
 
Q2.  How much parking and facility data is already mapped?  
 
A. Several years ago, parking meters were geocoded by the Planning and Urban Design Agency for what 
appears to be the entire project area. The data is still available in the City’s GIS database. (See a map of 
this data at the end of this Q&A.)  It is expected that this data will be field-verified for accuracy as it is 
approximately 5 years old. 
 
The Treasurer’s Office has implemented the Park Mobile payment system.  
 
The St. Louis Convention & Visitors Commission (DBA Explore St. Louis) along with other City stakeholders 
implemented a “Preferred Downtown Parking Facilities” program several years ago. Facilities that adhere 
to the Program’s high standards are identified and mapped on the “Get Around St. Louis” website: 
https://getaroundstl.com/attractions/parking/. 
 
Parking garages and surface lots require a business license from the City of St. Louis License Collector’s 
Office. We expect that this information can be obtained, but as of the time this response it has not yet 
been provided.  

 
Q3.  Does the city have a current GIS database of parking inventory such as meters and/or signage?  
 
A. See Q2. Unsure what is meant by “signage,” but we do not think that parking facility sign locations are 
available from any source. 

 
 

Q4.  Will the City appoint an internal GIS point of contact to support this project? 
 
A. We will certainly appoint a Project Manager to coordinate communication with all City departments 
including IT. We will also seek to have an individual appointed by the IT department and/or Planning 
Department to assist with any GIS inquiries.  In every event, communications with City staff should include 
the Project Manager in order to better facilitate responsiveness. 

 
 
Q5.  What is the approximate number of properties (garages and parking lots) in the parking facility 
inventory? 
 
A. Unknown. The Carl Walker study identified 58 parking facilities in a smaller geography. It would be safe 
to say that an approximate number of facilities is 100-125. Referring to question 2 above, we expect that a 
better estimate will be available upon receipt of information from the License Collector’s office. 
 

https://www.stlouis-mo.gov/data/
https://getaroundstl.com/attractions/parking/


 
Q6.  Does this include only municipally owned and operated facilities? Or all parking facilities in the 
area regardless of ownership or public access? 
 

A.  The study should identify all parking facilities in the study area to the extent possible. Parking 
facilities in residential buildings that are only available for tenants of the building may be excepted. 
However, in the event that it is known that such private parking facilities contain a significant 
surplus or shortage of spaces, an attempt should be made to include them.   

 
 

Q7.  If information for private spaces is required will SLDC provide or will the consultant need to obtain 
from the private owners or in the field? 

 
A. Ownership and contact information of the parking facilities should be obtained from public records to 
the extent possible. SLDC will assist with obtaining this information as necessary. It is also possible that 
information from the License Collector’s office will contain the necessary information. The consultant 
should work to secure permission from the owner of each facility to access the property for gathering 
information to be included in the parking facility inventory. Again, the Project Manager will assist with this 
effort when necessary. 

 
 

Q8.  The occupancy portion of the study does not outline the extent and detail of the data desired. Is this 
something that SLDC will identify, or will the consulting team be tasked with determining the level of 
detail?  
 
A. The consultant should propose a methodology for collecting this information. Refer to previous studies 
and “standard industry practices” for examples. It would be advantageous to get both day and night data 
as well as data on weekend days. It is suggested that data could be collected initially with a follow up 
observation or two to confirm. 
 
It is important to note that major events such as home Cardinal baseball games and events at the 
America’s Center Convention Complex will have a significant impact on the occupancies of nearby parking 
facilities and data collection should be avoided during those periods of time.  

 
 

Q9.  Regarding the earlier question – is this ALL parking facilities or just city owned? 
 

A. See question 6 above. 
 

 
Q10.  What is the expectation on parking occupancy data? A few targeted peak time observations, detailed 
hourly counts of each facility, other? 
 
A. See question 8 above. Note that it doesn’t make sense to collect data before or after what are likely 
the peak daily demand periods. (i.e. don’t collect data before 9:00 am or after 5:00 pm.) The respondent 
should indicates its proposed methodology for collecting this data. 

 
 
Q11.  What is expected from the determination of useful life for a parking facility?  
 



A. Refer to previous studies and “standard industry practices.” This is a subjective evaluation based on 
the age and observed condition of the facility assuming customary periodic maintenance is undertaken by 
the owner or property manager. When significant limiting useful life conditions are observed, such as 
failing concrete, it should be noted that the projection is based on required capital expenditures to cure 
the defect(s). 

 
 

Q12.  Are detailed facility condition assessments desired? 
 
A. No. See question 11 above. This is expected to be a subjective evaluation in which the “most 
important” conditions are noted. This would include concrete, elevators, lighting, etc. We expect the 
consultant to propose and determine the conditions that will be observed and the rating system it will use. 
(i.e. Great, Good, Fair, Poor, Defective as an example) 

 
 

Q13.  Please clarify the fee structure requirements and intended work versus additional work (sections 3 
and 4)?  
 
A. The consultant should provide a cost breakdown for completing the scope of services. We expect that 
data collection is more easily estimated than other requested services. Describe what is being included in 
the proposal and the rate for completing the proposed services. Price will not be the only determining 
factor in selecting a consultant.  

 
 
Q14.  What is the anticipated number of sites for additional parking that will be reviewed? 
 
A. We anticipate that a further evaluation of 5-6 micro-areas will be important in understanding next 
steps in addressing the parking needs and proposed solutions. Refer to question 13 above. We are looking 
for proposals that describe what work is included and what fee structure will apply to the proposed 
services. 

 
 
Q15.  In regard to the past studies, will information be available to determine what recommendations 
were implemented from each study? 
  
A. The two most relevant past studies that we are aware of are described in the RFP. One of the studies 
was uploaded to the RFP website. The other study is referenced in the RFP and is available at this link: 
https://www.stlouis-mo.gov/government/departments/treasurer/documents/parking-study-2014.cfm
  

 
 
Q16.  Section 5 is an open ended request for additional work. What reasonable limits are expected by the 
SLDC?  
 
A. Refer to questions 13 and 14 above. We are looking for the consultant to describe services that will be 
provided and for what fee. Any additional services that are requested that are not included in the 
respondent’s proposal will be negotiated in advance of executing a contract. Please note that this does not 
suggest that proposals will omit such services with the intent of keeping the fee lower.  

 
 

https://www.stlouis-mo.gov/government/departments/treasurer/documents/parking-study-2014.cfm
https://www.stlouis-mo.gov/government/departments/treasurer/documents/parking-study-2014.cfm


Q17.  What is the project budget? 
 
A. We do not have a set budget at this time. We will seek appropriate funding to complete the scope of 
work included in the preferred proposal with an understanding that adjustments may be necessary at the 
discretion of SLDC. The Carl Walker study completed in 2012 was done for a fee around $75,000. This 
study area is approximately twice as large, and different evaluations are included in the scope of services. 
Much also depends on the number of observations made of each facility to get an understanding of the 
occupancy rates. We do not expect to exceed $250,000. Again, price is not the primary determining factor. 

 
 

 
Q18.  To what extent does the City have existing and/or historical parking inventory/utilization data? 
 
A. The primary data we have available is from the previous studies referenced above. These should be 
used as a starting point for completing the parking inventory survey. 
 
 
Q19.  To what extent does the City anticipate public engagement as part of this study?  The RFP does not 
highlight specific requirements for public engagement. 
 
A. We don’t anticipate that a public engagement process is necessary to complete the study. We do think 
it is appropriate to convene meetings with various stakeholders, especially as we present the findings and 
seek a further evaluation of the “micro areas.”  In the event that the consultant is asked to assist with 
implementing one or more solutions, public engagement will likely be necessary. Those services will be 
negotiated upon request of SLDC. 

 
 

Q19.  Can you give us an indication of what kind of GIS data base currently exists within the City, SLDLC, 
and Treasurer’s office with regard to off-street parking, meters and curb usage? 
 
A. See questions 1, 2, and 3. 
 

 
Q20.  Please provide some additional detail on the limits of “5. Upon review of the Preliminary Report, 
SLDC reserves the right to request additional work to further develop or refine the recommend strategies 
at no additional cost.” Are there any limits on how much additional work SLDC may request? 
 
A. See questions 14 and 16 above. 
 

 
Q21.  Please give us an indication of the budget (or level of effort) you expect for this assignment. 

 
A. See question 17 above. 

 
 
Q22.  How many meetings with the consultant should be budgeted? 
 
A. Prior to executing a contract with the preferred consultant, we expect to have one or two 
conversations to discuss the Scope of Services that will be included in the contract. These could be in-
person or via conference call.  



 
As for once the project is initiated, we expect the consultants to suggest a meeting schedule in describing 
its approach to completing this study. In general, we would expect to have a kickoff meeting; 3-5 
conference calls to discuss progress, issues, and questions as the work is being completed; a meeting to 
discuss preliminary findings; 2-4 meetings to address each of the micro areas (some areas may overlap), 
and a final meeting to review the study and proposed recommendations.    

 
 

Q23.  What level of accuracy are you looking for with the GIS data? 
 

A. With respect to parking facilities, the GIS data should be as accurate as the City’s parcel data. With 

respect to parking meters, we would expect the data to be accurate as to the correct number of meters in 

each city block. The geospatial location of each meter should be accurate to within 1 foot. 

 

 

 

  


